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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

WALTER SMITH, individually and on : o on A g
behalf of all others similarly situated, : ﬁ ' 2 g 9 8
Civil Action:
Plaintiff,
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED o
V.
TWELFTH STREET HOTEL ASSOCIATES, d/b/a VA B
LOEWS PHILADELPHIA HOTEL : By I~/ K’W&ﬁ%’kﬂs

COLLECTIVE AND CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Plaintiff Waiter Smith (“Plaintiff”), by and through his undersigned attorneys, brings this
action individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated against Twelfth Street
Hotel Associates, d/b/a Loews Philadelphia Hotel (“Defendant”) and alleges, upon personal

belief as to his own acts, and upon information and belief as the acts of others, as follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Plaintiff brings this action to redress violations by Defendant of the Americans
~ with Disabilities Act (‘ADA”), 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., and the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act (“PHRA”), 43 P.S. § 951, et seq. Further, Plaintiff brings this Complaint
contending that Defendant has improperly failed to pay him and all similarly situated employees
of Defendant overtime compensation pursuant to the requirements of the Fair Labor Standards
Act (“FLSA”), 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq., the Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act (“PMWA”), and
the Pennsylvania Wage Payment and Collection Law (“WPCL”).

2. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff has been employed by Defendant as a Room

Attendant. Plaintiff has regularly worked more than forty (40) hours per week but has not been

.{
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properly compensated for his work in that Plaintiff has not been paid an overtime premium
calculated at 1.5 times his regular rate of pay for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours in a

work week, as required by the FLSA.

3. Defendant has engaged in a long-term scheme of wage abuse against its Room
Attendants, and others similarly situated, habitually deducting thirty (30) minutes of
compensable pay from each shift worked, regardless of whether Plaintiff and all those similarly
situated actually received an uninterrupted, thirty (30) minute break, resulting in unpaid wages

and overtime compensation in violation of the FLSA, PMWA, & WPCL.

4, Plaintiff brings this action on a representative basis seeking monetary damages,
declaratory and injunctive relief, and other equitable and ancillary relief, to seek redress to
Defendant’s willful, unlawful, and improper conduct. Plaintiff also brings this claim on an

individual basis to address violation under the ADA and PHRA.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), which
provides, in relevant part, that suit under the FLSA “may be maintained against any employer ...
in any Federal or State court of competent jurisdiction.” See 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). Additionally,
this Court has original jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s ADA claim,‘ pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331
and 1343, as it is a civil rights action arising under the laws of the United States.

6. The Court also has federal question jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1343.

7. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s state law claims because

those claims arise out of the same nucleus of operative fact as the FLSA and ADA claims.
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8. On or about December 21, 2017, Plaintiff filed a Charge of Discrimination with
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, thereby satisfying the requirements of 42
U.S.C. §§ 2000e5(b) and (e). Plaintiff’s EEOC Charge was docketed as EEOC Charge Number
530-2018-01269C. Plaintiff’s EEOC Charge was filed within one hundred and eighty (180) days
of the unlawful employment practice.

9. By correspondence dated March 26, 2018, Plaintiff received a Notice of Right to
Sue from the EEOC regarding his Charge, advising him that he had ninety (90) days to file suit
against the Defendant.

10.  Plaintiff has therefore exhausted his administrative remedies and has complied
with all conditions precedent to maintaining this action.

11.  The venue in this district is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), as the parties
reside in this judicial district, doing business therein, and the unlawful practices of which

Plaintiff is complaining were committed in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

PARTIES

12.  Plaintiff currently resides at 7959 Langdon Street, Apartment 2, Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania 19111, and was an employee of Defendant.

13.  Defendant is a “private employer” and covered by the FLSA.

14.  Upon information and belief, Defendant Twelfth Street Hotel Associates d/b/a
Loews Philadelphia Hotel is a for-profit business entity, duly organized and existing under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and is registered and licensed to engage in business,
and is engaged in business, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania, with a principal place of business located in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,
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and in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, at 1200 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
19107.
15.  Plaintiff has been employed by Defendant during all relevant times hereto and as

such, is an employee entitled to the FLSA’s protections. See 29 U.S.C. § 203(e).

FLSA COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS
16.  Paragraphs 1 through 15 are hereby incorporated as though same were more fully
set forth at length herein.
17.  This action is brought as a collective action to recover unpaid compensation and
overtime compensation, liquidated damages, unlawfully withheld wages, statutory penalties, and

damages owed to Plaintiff and all similarly situated current and former employees of Defendant.

18.  Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) of the FLSA, Plaintiff brings this action
individually and on behalf of all other similarly situated persons presently or formerly employed
by Defendant in the position of Room Attendant, or in pbsitions with similar job duties who were
similarly subject to Defendant’s unlawful meal break policy who worked for Defendant any
point in the three (3) years preceding the date the instant action was initiated (the members of the

putative class are hereinafter referred to as the “Class Plaintiffs”).

19.  In violation of the provisions of the FLSA, Defendant failed to pay Plaintiff and
similarly situated employees compensation and/or overtime compensation for all hours worked

over forty (40) in a week.

20, In violation of the FLSA, Defendant also failed to accurately track, record, and

report the hours worked by Plaintiff and similarly situated employees. This policy and practice
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of Defendant is unequivocal evidence of Defendant’s willful and improper failure to follow the

provisions of the FLSA.

21.  Inviolation of the FLSA, Defendant failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated

employees for work performed during unpaid meal breaks.

22.  Plaintiff will request the Court to authorize notice to all current and former
similarly situated employees employed by Defendant, informing them of the pendency of this
action and their right to “opt-in” to this lawsuit pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), for the purpose of

seeking unpaid compensation, overtime compensation and liquidated damages under the FLSA.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
23. Paragraphs 1 through 22 are hereby incorporated by reference as though the same

were more fully set forth at length herein.

24.  Plaintiff brings this action individually, and on behalf of the following state-wide
class of similarly situated individuals, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rule of Civil

Procedure:

All persons presently or formerly employed by Defendant Twelfth Street Hotel
Associates d/b/a Loews Philadelphia Hotel during the last three (3) years in the position
of Room Specialist, or in positions with similar job duties, who were subject to
Defendant’s unpaid meal break policy and denied overtime compensation for work
performed in excess of 40 hours in a work week.

25.  The members of the class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
impractical. Class members may be informed of the pendency of this Class Action by direct

mail.
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26.  Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(2), there are questions of law

and fact common to the Class, including, but not limited to:

a. Whether Defendant failed to properly compensate Plaintiff and Class
Plaintiffs for all hours worked;
b. Whether Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to overtime compensation for

services rendered in excess of forty (40) hours per week under the PMWA;

c. Whether Plaintiff and the Class worked in excess of 40 hours per week;

d. Whether Defendant required Plaintiff and the Class to work in excess of
forty (40) hours per week; |

e. Whether Plaintiff and the Class have suffered and are entitled to damages,

and, if so, in what amount;

f. Whether Defen&ant engaged in a pattern and/or practice of not accurately
tracking or recording all hours Plaintiff and the Class worked;

g. Whether Defendant has refused to accept Plaintiff and the Class’ reports
that they were not receiving compensation for work performed during interrupted meal periods;

h. Whether Defendant threatened Plaintiff and the Class for reporting and
requesting compensation for work performed during unpaid meal periods;

i. Whether Defendant failed to provide uninterrupted meal periods as
required by Defendant’s written policies, practices, and agreements;

J- Whether Defendant failed to compensate Plaintiff and the Class for

interrupted meal periods;
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k. Whether Defendant failed to pay Plaintiff and the Class wages and
overtime wages in the period when said wages became due and owing in violation of the WPCL;;
and

1. Whether Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to liquidated damages under
the WPCL.

27.  Class action treatment is superior to the alternatives for the fair and efficient
adjudication of the controversy alleged herein. Such treatment will permit a large number of
similarly situated persons to prosecute their claims in a single forum simultaneously, efficiently,
and without the duplication of effort and expense that numerous individual actions would entail.
No difficulties are likely to be encountered in the management of this class action that would
preclude its maintenance as a class action, and no superior altemative exists for the fair and
sufficient adjudication of this controversy. The Class is readily identifiable from Defendant’s
payroll records.

28.  Prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the Class would create
the risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual members of the Class
that would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the Defendant.

29.  Aclass action is superior over other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Additionally, the
amounts at stake for each of the Class members, while substantial, are not great enough to enable
them to maintain separate suits against Defendant.

30.  Without a class action, Defendant will likely retain the benefit of its wrongdoing

and will continue in its flagrantly abusive course of action, which will result in further damages
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to Plaintiff and the Class. Plaintiff envisions no difficulty in the management of this action as a
class action.
31.  Plaintiff is unaware of any other litigation commenced by Class members

involving the same exact issues as this case.

FACTS COMMON TO ALL COLLECTIVE/CLASS CLAIMS

32.  Paragraphs | through 31 are hereby incorporated by reference as though the same

were more fully set forth at length herein.

33.  Plaintiff was employed by Defendant in the position of Room Attendant from

approximately January 2017 until on or about May 17, 2017.

34.  Upon information and belief, Defendant employs or has employed in excess of
twenty (20) other individuals in the position of Room Attendant. Further, Defendant employs
several additional individuals that were or are similarly subject to Defendant’s unlawful pay

practices described herein.

35.  Plaintiff’s and Class Plaintiffs’ job duties predominantly include cleaning hotel

rooms and hotel common areas.

36.  Plaintiff routinely worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week. In fact,

Plaintiff would, on average, work over forty-five (45) hours per week.

37. By way of example, in a two (2) week pay period beginning April 3, 2017 and
ending on April 14, 2017 Plaintiff worked a totally of one hundred and six and three fourths
(106.75) hours, which is the approximate number of hours that Plaintiff regularly works.

However, despite working at least three (3) over-time hours during his lunch in that bi-weekly
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period, Plaintiff did not receive any overtime compensation for the hours he worked during the

automated lunch break in a workweek.

38. Class Plaintiffs routinely worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week. In fact,
Class Plaintiffs would routinely work at least forty-one and one half (41.5) hours per week.

39 Despite the fact that Plaintiff’s and Class Plaintiffs worked in excess of 40 hours
per week, Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs did not receive overtime compensation for work
performed in excess of 40 hours per week during their lunch break.

40.  Inviolation of the provisions of the FLSA, Defendant unlawfully failed to track,
record, and report all the hours worked by Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs.

41.  During their scheduled shifts, Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs, in accordance with
Defendant’s policies and practices, are supposed to receive an unpaid meal break. It is
Defendant’s policy and practice to automatically deduct thirty (30) minutes of compensation
from each hourly employee during each scheduled shift. Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs, however,
do not receive an uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal break during every shift worked, and
routinely perform work during their meal periods on a near—daily basis. This policy and practice
is further proof and evidence of Defendant’s willful and unlawful practice of not paying Plaintiff
and Class Plaintiff for all hours worked and of Defendant’s failure to follow the provisions of the
FLSA.

42.  Asaresult of the aforementioned policies and practices of Defendant, Plaintiff
and Class Plaintiffs are denied, on a near-daily basis, pay, compensation, and/or overtime

compensation for, at a minimum, thirty (30) minutes of compensable work performed.
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43.  The aforementioned policies and practices of Defendant violate the FLSA, and as
a result, Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs have suffered loss of wages, compensation, and/or overtime
compensation.

44.  Defendant knew or showed reckless disregard in its failure to track and record the
hours actually worked by Plaintiff and Class Pléintiffs, and in its failure to properly compensate
Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs for all wages, eompensation, and overtime pay, in violation of the
FLSA.

45.  Accordingly, Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs were/are, within the meaning of the
FLSA, non-exempt employees of Defendant.

46.  Defendant failed to pay Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs at a rate of at least 1.5 times
their regular rate of pay for each hour that they worked in exeess of 40 hours in a work week
during their automated lunch break.

As a result of Defendant’s aforesaid illegal actions, Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs have suffered
damages

47.  Defendant failed to maintain accurate records for each employee for hours
.actually worked, as required by law. See C.F.R. § 516.2(a)(7)

FACTS PERTAINING TO PLAINTIFF’S INDIVIDUAL ADA AND PHRA CLAIM

48. | Plaintiff was hired by Defendant in on around January, 2017 as a Room
Attendant.

49.  During Plaintiff’s employment he never received any meaningful discipline or
negative performance reviews.

50. In or around 2014, Plaintiff was in a car accident where he sustained injuries.

51.  Plaintiff suffered a broken shoulder, a collapsed lung and bleeding in his brain.

10
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52.

When Plaintiff was hired by Defendant, he immediately notified them of the

disabilities associated with his previous car accident.

53.

Carol (last name unknown) (“Carol LNU”), Defendant’s Assistant Director

acknowledged that Plaintiff discussed this disability with her by stating “got it.”

54.

No one in Defendant’s employ spoke to Plaintiff about his disabilities during

training or at any other meaningful time leading up to his start date.

55.

On or around May 8, 2017, Plaintiff turned in a doctors note to Defendant

requesting certain light duty accommodations due to his disability.

56.

57.

work then.”

58.

Plaintiff’s light duty restrictions included no pushing or lifting beds to clean.

After Plaintiff turned in his doctors note to Carol LNU, she stated “well you can’t

Howeyver, it is upon knowledge and belief that three (3) other Room Attendants

were on light duty at this time.

59.

60.

Thereafter, Plaintiff was put on light duty where he vacuumed floors and dusted.

While working on light duty, Plaintiff began to notice that the Managers were

acting cold towards him and were creating a tense working environment.

61.

After requesting and being put on light duty, Plaintiff received Defendant’s

accommodation paperwork.

62.

As such, Plaintiff’s doctor filled out said paperwork, which included his doctors

anticipated return to full duty.

63.

On or around May 16, 2017, Plaintiff turned in Defendant’s accommodation

paperwork to Diane (last name unknown) (“Diane LNU”) in Human Resources.

11



Case 2:18-cv-02398-TJS Document 1 Filed 06/07/18 Page 12 of 21

64. On or about May 17, 2017, Plaintiff was called into Human Resources for a
meeting with a Manager and Human Resources Personnel, where he was told that Defendant
could no longer accommodate him and that he was terminated. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered

damages.
COUNT1
FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
29 U.S.C § 201, et seq.
FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME COMPENSATION

65.  Paragraphs 1 through 64 are hereby incorporated by reference as though same
were fully set forth at length herein.

66. Pursuant to Section 206(b) of the FLSA, all employees must be compensated for
every hour worked in a workweek. | |

67.  Moreover, Section 267(a)(1) of the FLSA states that employees must be paid
overtime, equal to 1.5 times the employee’s regular rate of pay, for all hours worked in excess of
(40) forty hours per week.

68.  According to the policies and practices of Defendant, Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs
were required to work in excess of forty (40) hours per week. Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs were
denied overtime compensation for compensable work performed in excess of forty (40) hours per
week during their automated lunch breaks, in violation of the FLSA.

69.  Defendant failed to pay Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs for all hours worked during
their unpaid meal breaks.

70.  The foregoing actions of Defendant violate the FLSA.

71. Defendant’s actions were willful, not in good faith, and in reckless disregard of

clearly applicable FLSA provisions.

12
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72.  Defendant is liable to Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs for actual damages, liquidated
damages, and other equitable relief, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 216(b), as well as reasonable
attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for the following relief on behalf of himself and Class
Plaintiffs:

A. An Order from this Court permitting this litigation to proceed as a collective
action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b);

B. An Order from the Court ordering Defendant to file with this Court and furnish to
the undersigned counsel a list of all names and addresses of all employees who have worked for
Defendant during the preceding three (3) years, compensated on an hourly basis, who were also
subject to Defendant’s unlawful pay practices, and authorizing Plaintiff’s counsel to issue a
notice at the earliest possible time to these individuals, informing them that this action has been
filed, of the nature of the action, and of their right to opt-in to this lawsuit if they worked for
Defendant during the liability period, but were not paid compensation and/or overtime pay as
required by the FLSA;

C. Adjudicating and declaring that Defendant’s conduct as set forth herein and above
is in violation of the FLSA;

D. Adjudicating and declaring that Defendant violated the FLSA by failing to pay
compensation and/or overtime pay to Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs for compensable hours in
excess of (40) forty hours per week and for all hours worked;

E. Awarding Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs back pay wages and/or overtime wages in

an amount consistent with the FLSA;

13
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F. Awarding Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs liquidated damages in accordance with the
FLSA;

G. Awarding Plaintiff reasonable attorney’s fees and all costs of this action, to be
paid by Defendant, in accordance with the FLSA;

H. Awarding pre and post-judgment interest and court costs as further allowed by
law;

L. Granting Plaintiff and the Class Plaintiffs leave to add additional Plaintiffs by

motion, the filing of written opt-in consent forms, or any other method approved by the Court;

and
J. For all additional general and equitable relief to which Plaintiff and the Class may
be entitled.
COUNT II
PENNSYLVANIA MINIMUM WAGE ACT OF 1968
43 P.S. § 333 et seq.

73.  Paragraphs 1 through 72 are hereby incorporated by reference as though same
were fully set forth at length herein.

74.  The Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act provides that employers must pay certain
“minimum wages,” including overtime wages, to its employees. See 43 P.S. § 333.113.

75.  The Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act further provides that “employees shall be
paid for overtime not less than one and one-half times the employee’s regular rate” for hours
worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a workweek. See 43 P.S. § 333.113.

76. By its actions alleged above, Defendant has violated the provisions of the
Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act of 1968 by féiling to properly pay overtime compensation and

for failing to properly pay Plaintiff and Class Plaintiffs for all hours worked.

14



Case 2:18-cv-02398-TJS Document 1 Filed 06/07/18 Page 15 of 21

77. As aresult of Defendant’s unlawful acts, Plaintiff and the Class Plaintiffs have
been deprived of overtime compensation in amounts to be determinate at trial, and are entitled to
recovery of such amounts, together with interest, costs and attorney’s fee.s pursuant to
Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act of 1968, 43 P.S. § 333.113.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the Class Plaintiffs, pray for judgment
against Defendant as follows:

A. An Order certifying this case as a class action and designating Plaintiff as the
representative of the Class and their counsel as class counsel;

B. An award to Plaintiff and the Class for the amount of unpaid overtime
compensation to which they are entitled, including interest thereon, and penalties subject to
proof;

C. An award to Plaintiff and the Class of reasonable attorney’s fees and costs
pursuant to the Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act; and

D. An award to Plaintiff and the Class for any other damages available to them under
applicable Pennsylvania law, and all such other relief as thi‘s Court may deem proper.

COUNT I

WAGE PAGEMENT AND COLLECTION LAW
43 P.S. § 260.1, et seq.

78.  Paragraphs 1 through 77 are hereby incorporated by reference as though same
were fully set forth at length herein.

79. By its actions alleged above, Defendant has violated the provisions of the
Pennsylvania Wage Payment and Collection Law, 43 P.S. § 260.1, et seq., by failing to pay
certain wages and benefits earned, due and owing to Plaintiff and the Class pursuant to

Defendant’s written policies, practices and agreements with Plaintiff and the Class.

15
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80.  Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to compensation for the meal periods that
Defendant either failed to provide or failed to compensate Plaintiff and the Class for when their
meal periods were interrupted and they were required to perform work. Plaintiff and the Class
were not paid for the time worked on their regular paydays.

81. As a result of Defendant’s unlawful acts, Plaintiff and the Class have been
deprived of compensation in amounts to be determinate at trial, and are entitled to recovery of
such amounts, and liquidated damages, together with costs and attorney’s fees pursuant to the
Wage Payment and Collection Law, 43 P.S. §§260.9a, 260.10.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief on behalf of himself and the Class to the fullest
extent permitted by law including, but not limited to, the award of any and all damages Plaintiff
and the Class are entitled to under applicable law.

COUNT 1V
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
42 U.S.C § 12101, ET SEQ. -
DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION

82.  Paragraphs 1 through 81 are hereby incorporated by reference as though the same
were more fully set forth at length herein.

83.  Atall times relevant hereto, Plaintiff was an employee within the meaning of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.

84.  Pursuant to the ADA, Plaintiff is a qualified individual with one or more
disabilities.

85.  Plaintiff’s injuries including but not limited to bleeding in his brain, a collapsedr
lung and a broken shoulder substantially limits his ability to engage in major life activities.

86.  Defendant was aware of Plaintiff’s disabilities and/or regarded Plaintiff as being

disabled.

16
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87.  Despite his disability, Plaintiff would have been able to perform the essential
functions of his job with or without a reasonable accommodation.

88. By reasons of the foregoing, Defendant, through its agents, officers, servants,
and/or employees, has violated the ADA by failing to engage in the interactive process of
determining reasonable accommodations for Plaintiff, and by terminating Plaintiff’s employment
because of his actual and/or perceived disability and request for reasonable accommodations in
connection thereto.

89. As a result of Defendant’s deliberate, unlawful, and malicious actions as set forth
above, Plaintiff has suffered loss of employment, earnings, raises, other significant economic
benefits, emotional pain and suffering, emotional distress and humiliation.

WHEREFORE, as a result of the unlawful conduct of Defendant, Plaintiff respectfully
requests that this Court enter judgment in his favor and against Defendant, and grant him the
maximum relief allowed by law, including, but not limited to:

A. Back wages, front pay, and bonuses in an amount to be determined at trial, but not
less than one hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000.00);

B. Punitive, compensatory, and/or exemplary damages in an amount to be
determined at trial, but sufficient to punish Defendant for its intentional, negligent, willful,

wanton, and/or malicious conduct;

C. Plaintiff’s costs, disbu_rsements, and attorneys’ fees incurred in prosecuting this
action;

D. Pre-judgment interest in an appropriate amount; and

E. Such other and further relief as is just and equitable under the circumstances;

17
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F. Any verdict in favor of Plaintiff is to be molded by the Court to maximize the
financial recovery available to Plaintiff in light of the caps on certain damages as set forth by

applicable law.

COUNT V
THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS ACT
43 P.S. § 951, ET SEQ.
DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION

90.  Paragraphs 1 through 89 are hereby incorporated by reference, as though the same
were more fully set forth at length herein.

91.  Plaintiff is a qualified individual with a disability within the meaning of the
Pennsylvania Human Relations Act (“PHRA™), 43 P.S. § 951, et seq., due to his injuries because
these condition substantially limits his ability to perform major life activities.

92.  Plaintiff was/is able to perform the essential functions of his job with or without a
reasonable accommodation.

93.  Itis believed and therefore averred that Defendant terminated Plaintiff’s
employment on the basis of his actual and/or perceived disabilities and in retaliation for his
requests fbr a reasonable accommodation.

94. As a result of Defendant’s deliberate, uniawful, and malicious actions as set forth
above, Plaintiff has suffered loss of employment, earnings, raises, other significant economic
benefits, emotional pain and suffering, emotional distress and humiliation.

95.  The conduct described above constitutes a violation of the Pennsylvania Human

Relations Act, 43 P.S. § 955, ef seq., and affords Plaintiff the opportunity to seek any and all

remedies available under said Act.

18
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WHEREFORE, as a result of the unlawful conduct of the Defendant, Plaintiff
respectfully requests that this Court enter judgment in his favor and against Defendant, and grant
him the maximum relief allowed by law, including, but not limited to:

A. Back wages, front pay, and bonuses in an amount to be determined at trial, but not

less than one hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000.00);

B. Punitive, compensatory, and/or exemplary damages in an amount to be

determined at trial, but sufficient to punish Defendant for its intentional, negligent, willful,

wanton, and/or malicious conduct;

C. Plaintiff’s costs, disbursements, and attofney’s fees incurred in prosecuting this
action;

D. Pre-judgment interest in an appropriate amount; and

E. Such other and further relief as is just and equitable under the circumstances;

F. Any verdict in favor of Plaintiff is to be molded by the Court to maximize the

financial recovery available to Plaintiff in light of the caps on certain damages as set forth by

applicable law.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury as to all issues so triable.
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Dated: June 6, 2018

Eight Penn Center, Suite 2000
1628 John F. Kennedy Blvd.
Philadelphia, PA 19103

TEL: 267-273-1054

. FAX:215-525-0210

murphv@phillyemploymentlawyer.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

20
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DEMAND TO PRESERVE EVIDENCE

The Defendant is hereby deménded to preserve all physical and electronic information
pertaining in any way to Plaintiff’s employment, to his potential claims and his claims to
damages, to any defenses to same, including, but not limited to electronic data storage,
employment files, files, memos, job descriptions, text messages, e-mails, spreadsheets, images,
cache memory, payroll records, paystubs, time records, timesheets, and any other information

and/or data which may be relevant to any claim or defense in this litigation.

21
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. , g % 7 *UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

%’ Casd 2:18-c\é@P398-T3S Document 1-1 Filed 06/07/18 Page 2 of 3
FORIRHE EAS FRN DISTRICT O PEN}N VANIA — DESIGNATION FORM to be used by counsel to indicate the category of the case for the purpose of
assignrf #l: yopriate calendar. . 3 . ) i‘L Q) £) G .
Addres g 8 §04 W@gﬂo “s&léStm'g{Philadelphia, PA 19151 @ & g @

A Y
“Address of Defm‘aaﬁ@m Marke# Street, Philadelphia, PA 19107

Place of Accident, Incident or Transaction; 1200 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19107

(Use Reverse Side For Additional Space)

Does this civil action involve a nongovernmental corporate party with any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation owning?lf)/“/(br ore of its stock?
A .

(Attach two copies of the Disclosure Statement Form in accordance with Fed.R.Civ.P. 7.1(a)) . YesO
Does this case involve multidistrict litigation possibilities? ‘ Yeso  (NolX
RELATED CASE, IF ANY:
Case Number: Judge Date Terminated:

Civil cases are deemed related when yes is answered to any of the following questions:

1. Is this case related to property included in an earlier numbered suit pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court?
YesO Noﬂ(
2. Does this case involve the same issue of fact or grow out of the same transaction as a prior suit pending or within one year previously terminated
action in this court? :

YesO  NoX
3. Does this case involve the validity or infringement of a patent already in suit or any earlier numbered case pending or within one year previously
terminated action in this court? YesO  Nol{

4. Is this case a second or successive habeas corpus, social security appeal, or pro se civil rights case filed by the same individual?
YesOJ NoX

CIVIL: (Place ¢ iN ONE CATEGORY ONLY)
A. Federal Question Cases:
1. O Indemnity Contract, Marine Contract, and All Other Contracts

. Diversity Jurisdiction Cases:

Insurance Contract and Other Contracts

2. O FELA Airplane Personal Injury

3. O Jones Act-Personal Injury Assault, Defamation

4. O Antitrust Marine Personal Injury

5. O Patent Motor Vehicle Personal Injury
6,

abor-Managément Relations Other Personal Injury (Please specify)

Products Liability
Products Liability — Asbestos
All other Diversity Cases

b o o
O 0O0O0Oagooao o

Social Security Review Cases (Please specify)

11. 0 All other Federal Question Cases
{(Please specify)

ARBITRATION CERTIFICATION
. (Check Appropriate Category)
Micligel Murphy , counsel of record do hereby certify:

t to Local Civil Rule 53.2, Section 3(c)(2), that to the best of my knowledg€ and belief, the damages recoverable in this civil action case exceed the sum of

Michael Murphy, Esq 91262

Attorney-at-Law, Attorney LD #
NOTE: A trial de novo will be %:L: p:; ;mlyif:hem has been compliance with F.R.C.P. 38. jﬂN -770 18

I certify that, to my knowledge, the within case is not related to any case n ending or within one year previously terminated action in this court
except as noted above. q—%

pATE: %/7/2018 Michael Murphy, Es 91262
Attorney-at-La Attorney LD .#

CIV. 609 (5/2012)



Case 2,;‘1'8-cv -02398-TJS Document 1-1 Filed 06/07/18 Page 30of3
7 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUR

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA
CASE MANAGEMENT TRACK DESIGNATION FORM

Waltet Smith, on behalf of himself and : CIVIL ACTION
all others similarly situated; :
V. :
Twelfth Street Hotel Associates d/b/a : NO 1 8 @; 3 g 8

Lowes Philadelphia Hotel

In accordance with the Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan of this court, counsel for
plaintiff shall complete a Case Management Track Designation Form in all civil cases at the time of
filing the complaint and serve a copy on all defendants. (See § 1:03 of the plan set forth on the reverse
side of this form.) In the event that a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said
designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on

" the plaintiff and all other parties, a Case Management Track Designation Form specifying the track

to which that defendant believes the case should be assigned.
SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CASE MANAGEMENT TRACKS:
(a) Habeas Corpus — Cases brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2241 through § 2255. ()

(b) Social Security — Cases requesting review of a decision of the Secretary of Health
and Human Services denying plaintiff Social Security Benefits. ()

(c) Arbitration — Cases required to be designated for arbitration under Local Civil Rule 53.2. ( )

(d) Asbestos — Cases involving claims for personal injury or property damage from
exposure to asbestos. ()

(e) Special Management — Cases that do not fall into tracks (a) through (d) that are
commonly referred to as complex and that need special or intense management by
the court. (See reverse side of this form for a detailed explanation of special

management cases.) ()
() Standard Management — Cases that do not fall into any one of the other tracks. @
6/7/2018 Michael Murphy, Esquire / Plaintiff
Date Aﬁorney—at—laM/ Attorney for
267-273-1054 2‘15-525-0210 murphy@phillyemploymentlawyer.com
T_glephone FAX Number : E-Mail Address

(Civ. 660) 10/02

JUN -7 2018



ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Former Room Attendant Sues L oews Philadelphia Hotel Over Alleged Wage Violations, Discrimination



https://www.classaction.org/news/former-room-attendant-sues-loews-philadelphia-hotel-over-alleged-wage-violations-discrimination

